HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE- POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

JANUARY 2025 AGENDA PACKET CONTENTS

. Agenda for the January 22, 2025, Regular Commission Meeting

. Draft Minutes of the December 11, 2024, Regular Commission Meeting
. FY’25 2" Quarter Management Report

. General Manager’s Monthly Report

. FYI Section:

Letter from S.C. Rural Infrastructure Authority

Notice of Public Hearing: BJWSA FY’26-28 Rate Increases

Ella C. White Memorial Scholarship Fund Thank You Letter

Article from Moody’s Ratings Entitled “Water and Sewer Utilities — US:
2025 Outlook — Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases

Saw>

. Charts, Graphs and Water Quality Report



Agenda



HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE — POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052
www.hhpsd.com

AGENDA
Hilton Head Public Service District Commission
9 a.m.
January 22, 2025
PSD Community Room
21 Oak Park Drive, Hilton Head Island, SC 29926
I.  Call to Order & Freedom of Information Act Announcement
II.  Pledge of Allegiance
III.  Roll Call of Commissioners
IV.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
V.  Adoption of Draft Minutes of December 11, 2024, Regular Meeting
VI.  Change of June 2025 Commission Meeting Date to June 18 (Action)
VII.  FY ’25 2" Quarter Management Report
VIII.  General Manager’s Monthly Report
IX.  Advanced Metering Infrastructure & Customer Portal Presentation
X.  Executive Session
A. Under S.C. Code 30-4-70 (2) (“...receipt of legal advice ...”) — GO Bond Approval Authority

XI.  Possible Action by Commission Concerning Matters Discussed in Executive Session

XII.  Adjournment

*Public Comment will be taken before Commission vote on any action item.



| Draft Minutes



HILTON HEAD NO.1 PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
21 OAK PARK DRIVE — POST OFFICE BOX 21264
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 29925
TELEPHONE 843-681-5525 — FAX 843-681-5052

MINUTES
COMMISSION MEETING
DECEMBER 11, 2024

I. The meeting was called to order by Chairman Frank Turano at 9:04 a.m.
IL. Those in attendance were:

Mr. Frank Turano Chair

Mr. Jerry Cutrer Vice Chair

Mr. Stuart Bell Treasurer

Mrs. Patti Soltys Commissioner

Mr. Andy Paterno Commissioner

Mr. Ibrahim Abdul-Malik Commissioner

Mr. Michael Marks Commissioner

Present by request:

Mr. Pete Nardi General Manager

Mr. Bill Davis Operations Manager

Ms. Amy Graybill Finance Manager

Ms. Connie Whitehead Commission Recording Secretary

Visitors

None

III.  Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Frank Turano.
IV.  Swearing-In of Newly Re-Elected Commissioner
Key Discussion Points

e Chairman Turano administered the Oath of Office to newly re-elected
commissioner, Patti Soltys.

V. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

None



VI

VIIL.

VIII.

IX.

Adoption of Resolution in Honor of Vermell Doctor Scott

Key Discussion Points
e Mr. Turano presented a resolution on behalf of the Board in honor of Vermell
Doctor Scott and her 24 years of service.
e Ms. Scott, the PSD’s customer service supervisor, is set to retire from the PSD
January 1, 2025.

Action
e Mr. Cutrer moved to adopt the resolution as presented. Mr. Abdul-Malik
seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Adoption of Draft Minutes of the November 13, 2024, Commission Meeting

Action
e Mr. Bell moved to adopt the minutes of the November 13, 2024, meeting as
presented. Mr. Marks seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Strategic Goals & Objectives

Key Discussion Points

e At the November meeting, the Board directed staff to draft proposed changes to
the Strategic Goals & Objectives. Mr. Nardi presented the draft updates for
review.

Action

e Mr. Cutrer moved to adopt the draft revisions to the Strategic Goals and
Objectives with the addition of a new Item 1.7 in relation to the water main
relocation for the bridge project. Mr. Abdul Malik seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

General Manager’s Monthly Report

Key Discussion Points

e Mr. Nardi presented the General Manager’s Monthly Report. A copy is included
in the agenda packet.

e PSD staff held a meeting with local school representatives to inform them of the
PSD’s summer internship and career opportunities. Mr. Nardi met with the
superintendent of Beaufort County Schools to discuss opportunities for the PSD
to participate in Hilton Head High School’s planned vocational tech building.

2025 PSD Calendar

Key Discussion Points
e Staff presented the draft 2025 PSD Calendar for board consideration. The
calendar follows the standard fourth-Wednesday-of-the-month format, with the




XII.

exception of the November and December meetings which are held earlier in the
month to accommodate the holidays.

Action
e Mr. Cutrer moved to adopt the Draft 2025 PSD Calendar as presented. Mr.
Paterno seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

Election of 2025 Commission Officers
Key Discussion Points

e At the November meeting, Mr. Cutrer nominated the current slate of commission
officers to serve in the same capacity in 2025.

Action

e Mr. Cutrer moved to adopt the current slate of commission officers to serve in the
same capacity in 2025. Mr. Abdul-Malik seconded. The motion passed
unanimously.

Adjournment
Action

e Mr. Bell moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Paterno seconded. The meeting
adjourned at 10:01 a.m.



FY’25 2" Qtr

-~ IManagement Report



HiltonHead

hutata?
>

HILTON HEAD PUBLIC SERVICE DISTRICT
STRATEGIC GOALS & OBIJECTIVES
Adopted: December 2024

2"d Qtr. Fiscal Year ‘25 Management Report:

(“New:” indicates update for 2" Qtr. Report)

1. Goal No. 1-Water Services: Provide for all of our customers’ water supply needs with the highest

quality water possible in a cost-effective manner

1.1. Ensure water supply and quality through regular monitoring, reporting, and optimal production and
distribution system performance.

1.1 Management Tactics:

1)

2)
3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

New: The PSD passed its annual S.C. Department of Environmental Services (DES) inspection of the RO
Plant.

New: The PSD passed its annual DES inspection of the Water Distribution System.

PSD water supply capacity is currently adequate and water quality is meeting or exceeding all current state
and federal water quality standards, and all required reporting and monitoring is in compliance.

We are currently conducting water quality monitoring under the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s
Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 5 (aka “UCMR 5”). This is a national scientific monitoring
program in which the EPA periodically requires sampling for potential contaminants in order to determine
potential regulations in the future.

New: UCMR 5 sampling conducted in December was for PFAS at the intertie with Beaufort-Jasper Water &
Sewer Authority. It detected PFAS barely above proposed limits in three out of the 30 PFAS compounds
sampled (PFBS, PFOS, and PFOA).

Our UCMR 5 monitoring will continue through June 2025.

New: The PSD Water Quality Laboratory in August was once again nhamed a Laboratory of Excellence by the
S.C. Department of Environmental Services (DES). A news release was sent.

New: The PSD completed its mandatory Lead Service Line Inventory ahead of the October deadline and
submitted it to the S.C. DES. The PSD completed the inventory using a combination of building records
research and field team inspections.

New: The PSD’s membership in the peer-reviewed Partnership for Safe Water was recertified. This
program requires the utility to document our programs and procedures related to the optimization of our



water distribution system. Ourselves and Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority are the only
Partnership members in Beaufort County.

We have created a “Lead in Water” web page (https://hhpsd.com/lead/) invites customers to contact us to
have their water tested, and provides other useful links on the topic.

1.2 Utilize best available technologies where economically feasible.

1.2 Management Tactics:

8) PSD supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system upgrades and enhancements are continuous.

9) New: We have added real-time water distribution system pressure monitoring to our SCADA system. The
program monitors pressure at multiple key locations throughout the system.

10) Ongoing cybersecurity programs and training are in place. New: A multi-part cybersecurity training and
examination program was conducted with all staff during 2" Qtr. FY ’25.

1.3 Maintain an evergreen Long Range Water Supply Plan to assure supply and quality.

1.3 Management Tactics:

11) Long range water supply planning updated in spring 2022, including future capital project options and
updated hydrogeological modeling of aquifer conditions and expectations.

1.4 Proactively emphasize efficient use of water in all activities internally and with customers, particularly
in regard to landscape irrigation.

1.4 Management Tactics:

12) New: The PSD earned a national U.S. EPA 2024 WaterSense Excellence Award for Education and Outreach!
This was the PSD’s third WaterSense Excellence Award. It was given in recognition of our outstanding
customer communications on water efficiency throughout the year as well as our collaboration with
Clemson Extension Service on sustainable landscaping education for residents. A news release was sent.

10) Multiple items in 1st. gtr. e-newsletters and Summer 2024 bill insert newsletter provided '
information about water efficiency, including the island’s local irrigation ordinance and a new program by
U.S. EPA WaterSense to encourage water-efficient swimming pool operations.

11) PSD hosted and promoted a Clemson University Extension Service public workshop on the “Carolina

Yards & Neighborhoods” environmentally-sustainable, water-efficient landscape program in August.

1.5 Negotiate a new Purchased Water Agreement with Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer Authority.

1.5 Management Tactics:

13) New: PSD management team met with representatives from Raftelis to discuss the PSD’s goals for the new
agreement with BJWSA. Raftelis also met with BJWSA management. A set of draft terms for staff and
board review is anticipated in first calendar quarter of 2025.



1.6 Manage construction and grant administration of the S.C. Infrastructure Improvement Program and
American Rescue Plan Act Long Range Water Supply projects

1.6 Management Tactics:

14) New: RO Plant Expansion Update:

e PSD staff, general contractor Harper Construction, design engineers W.K. Dickson, and RO equipment
provider Veolia held a workshop to review detailed plans for the plant expansion to ensure agreement
on the plans, equipment selection, and construction sequencing.

e A construction schedule has been established. Significant milestones are:

o HVAC Improvements Finish in January 2026
o Emergency Generator Install in March 2026
o Plant Exterior Sitework Finish in April 2026
o Sodium Hypochlorite Bulk Storage Tank Finish in May 2026
o RO Filter Skids Install Finish in October 2026
e Grant and project budget updates will be provided in Quarterly Financial Reports to Commission.

15) New: RO Well #4, ASR #2 & Pipelines Update:
e A construction schedule has been established. Significant milestones are:
o RO Well #4 Drilling Finish in July 2025
RO Well #4 Pipeline to RO Plant Finish in November 2025
RO Well #4 Finish in February 2026
ASR #2 Drilling Finish in April 2026
ASR #2 Pipeline to Water Distribution System Finish in May 2025
ASR #2 Finish in April 2027

o O O O O

16) New: Leg O’ Mutton Booster Station Update:
e A construction schedule has been established. Significant milestones are:
o Concrete work Finish in February 2025.
o Emergency Generator install Finish in February 2025.
o Booster Pump Station install Finish in April 2025.

1.7 Manage the funding and relocation of the Hilton Head PSD-Broad Creek PSD treated drinking water
pipeline, resulting from the U.S. 278 Corridor Project.

1.7 Management Tactics:

17) The SCDOT has begun locating PSD water and sewer infrastructure in the vicinity of the U.S. 278 Corridor
Project. New: We have sent the SCDOT a set of requests to ensure to the safety of our pipeline during
proposed geotechnical barge-based borings in the Mackey and Skull creeks. No response to the request to
date.

18) Beaufort County has informed the PSD there could be a potential to jump-start the pipeline relocation
using County funds pledged to the Corridor Project. A meeting among the County, DOT, and PSDs is

pending.



2. Goal No. 2 - Recycled Water Services: Provide for all of the District’s wastewater collection, treatment,
and recycled water distribution services in a cost-effective manner while enhancing and protecting the
Island’s environment.

2.1. Continue to create access to the public sewer system for all properties seeking access, including the
use of external funding, and assessment programs.

2.1 Management Tactics:

19) PSD currently has more than 96% of customers connected to the sewer system, versus a national

20) percentage of 80% and versus BJWSA percentage of 60%.

21) Multiple programs and customer communications in place to facilitate customer conversions from septic
to sewer, including our “Connect Now” customer communications campaign, PSD long-term low interest
connection financing, Project SAFE sewer connection grants, and the Town of Hilton Head sewer
connection grant program. New: We created a bill insert for Project SAFE donations. The insert will be
mailed to approximately 12,000 addresses.

22) “Connect Now” postcards are mailed to all customer accounts that could add sewer but have not yet done
so. Postcard contains info. about both grant opportunities and PSD long-term, low-interest financing.

23) New: The Old House Creek subdivision POA has decided to complete the sewer system in its subdivision off
Spanish Wells Road. A low-pressure sewer project is under design. Twenty-six (26) parcels will receive
sewer access as a result.

2.2. Adhere to all regulatory standards and timely delivery of complete and accurate applications and
reports.

2.2 Management Tactics:

24) We received a “Satisfactory” rating on our annual DHEC Sanitary Survey inspection of the Recycled Water
Plant in March. Only “Satisfactory” or “Unsatisfactory” ratings are given.

2.3. Utilize best available technologies where economically feasible.

2.3 Management Tactics:

25) We have initiated an engineering study necessary to complete replacement of our screw pumps in the
Recycled Water Plant. New: We were awarded a $1.5-million grant from the S.C. Rural Infrastructure
Authority for our screw pump replacement project. The project has a preliminary estimated cost of $4.4
million. We will initiate design during this fiscal year.

26) Our FY ’25 budget includes a program to monitor ammonia and nitrate to enhance our wastewater quality
analysis and regulatory compliance program.

27) We have completed installation of a real-time monitoring system on the majority of our sewer lift stations.
The system, called Streametric, provides an array of readings related to the pump operations of the lift
stations (alarms, run times, starts/stops, motor amperage, etc.). It is a more comprehensive,
technologically advanced, and cost-effective system than our prior system. The system is critical for
effective sanitary sewer operations and to avoid sanitary sewer overflows at lift stations. New: We have
added an asset-management component to Streametric that allows for digital updating of lift station
maintenance activities and needs.



28) New: We have received a preliminary estimate for the installation of an Ultraviolet Light disinfection
system for the Recycled Water Plant. This system would reduce or eliminate our use of liquid chlorine as a
cost-control measure, and would

2.4 Identify and reduce odors from our collection and treatment processes.

2.4 Management Tactics:

29) Multiple odor control measures are in place, including dosing of odor-control agent and deployment of
deodorization blocks at key sewer lift stations.

30) We have implemented a new odor-reduction tactic that provides real-time monitoring and data
acquisition of odor levels that allows us to optimize our odor-control agent dosing.

3. Goal No. 3 - Environmental and Sustainability: Operate in a sustainable manner with high regard for
protecting and improving the environment.

3.1. Consider the creation of programs that inform the public proactively of new areas of environmental
concern regarding water and wastewater.

3.1 Management Tactics:

31) We continue to monitor for PFAS in our water supply and are following the national regulatory
developments related to PFAS via our trade associations, particularly the S.C. Water Quality Association.
Our most recent round of PFAS monitoring showed no detection of PFAS in any of the PSD groundwater
sources. The only detection comes at the intertie with the wholesale water provided by BJWSA.

32) Due to our non-detection of PFAS, the PSD Commission voted unanimously to opt out of multiple PFAS
class action settlements, to preserve the PSD’s right to seek legal remedies in the future should a problem
arise in our groundwater sources. The non-detection of PFAS would have resulted in the PSD receiving no
funds from the settlement since the utility would not be able to demonstrate an impact.

3.2. Introduce sustainable environmental initiatives as appropriate.

3.2 Management Tactics:

33) A key movement toward long-term sustainability of our water resources is the PSD’s effort to continue to
move away from our reliance on the freshwater Upper Floridan Aquifer and instead develop the brackish
Middle Floridan aquifer and increase our use of Aquifer Storage & Recovery.

34) Pete Nardi is serving as a member of WateReusSC, our state’s chapter of the national WateReuse
Association. In August, WateReuseSC presented draft legislation to DES that would require the creation of
recycled water regulations in our state, thereby expanding the recycled water toolbox for South Carolina.
DES currently is performing an internal legal review of the legislation. A next step will be to identify
General Assembly member(s) to introduce the legislation.

35) Our Recycled Water Plant has been re-certified as an Audubon Cooperative Sanctuary, which is a
recognition of sustainable practices at our business. We are the only wastewater treatment plant in the
United States with this designation.



3.3. Explore applying new methods (models) dealing with global climate change impact to
our specific situation.

3.3 Management Tactics:

36) Our 2022 hydrogeological modeling of the aquifer system at Hilton Head Island is a key part of the long-
term body of science related to our local groundwater. The model will help inform future science on
climate change impacts to the aquifer over time.

3.4. Identify and develop opportunities to reduce operating inputs such as power and chemicals.

3.4 Management Tactics:

37) Our RO Plant expansion project includes increasing the liquid chlorine storage capacity at the plant to a 30-
day supply.

4. Goal No. 4 — Customer Relations: Direct all activities to achieve a consistently high level of customer
satisfaction.

4.1. Respond to, resolve, and monitor customer concerns promptly while minimizing public disruptions.

4.1 Management Tactics:

38) Customer Service and Field Service teams are currently adequately staffed to respond to daily customer

calls.
39) Monthly telephone hold time average is less than one minute.
40) 24-hour emergency hotline and Field Services on-call are in place.

4.2. Develop and execute programs that enhance the District’s brand equity and maintain positive
relationships between the District and its customers and the community.

4.2 Management Tactics:

41) Ongoing and extensive customer communications in place, including website, news releases, bill insert
newsletters, social media on multiple platforms, and in-person presentations to groups, including:

New (k. - n.):
a. Pete Nardi appeared on WHHI-TV’s “Talk of the Town” in July to promote the August 15t
“Carolina Yards” customer workshop and water efficiency in the summer months.
b. The “Carolina Yards” workshop, led by Clemson Extension Service staff, was attended by approx.
30 people.
c. Jerry Cutrer and Pete Nardi gave a presentation on the Commission and PSD resources and
services to more than 60 people at The Cypress on Aug. 21.
d. Summer 2024 bill insert newsletter mailed to all customer accounts.
e. Pete Nardi interviewed by Island Packet newspaper for a story about PFAS as it relates to local
water sources.
f. News release sent in August on PSD Water Quality Laboratory earning “Laboratory of Excellence”
recognition from S.C. DES.



g. PSD hosted students from Heritage Academy on Sept. 17 to tour the Recycled Water Plant and
learn about PSD water resources.

h. Members of the HHI-Bluffton Leadership Class of 2024-25 toured the Recycled Water Plant and
interviewed Pete Nardi on leadership on Oct. 2 as part of their required Community Enrichment
Activities.

i. PSD earned 2024 EPA WaterSense Excellence Award for Education and Outreach. A news release
was sent.

j. Pete Nardi spoke to the HHI-Bluffton Leadership Class of 2024-25 about local water resources on
Oct. 9 as part of their annual Government Day.

k. PSD hosted a group of residents from The Cypress in October for a tour of our Recycled Water
Plant and the RO Plant.

I. We held an information meeting with residents of Old House Creek about their pending low-
pressure sewer project.

m. We hosted 80 middle school students from John Paul Il Catholic School in Okatie for a tour of
the Recycled Water Plant and RO Plant, and a presentation on water and wastewater treatment
and sources.

n. Pete Nardi appeared on WHHI-TV’s “Talk of the Town” to give an update on our Water Supply &
Resiliency Projects.

42) New: PSD Commissioners Stuart Bell (District 2); Patricia Flynn Soltys (Dist. 3); Jerry Cutrer (Dist. 4); and
Andrew Paterno (Dist. 6) were each reelected to four-year terms during the November General Election.

43) PSD staff continue to be involved in array of industry-related volunteer activities that both enhance the
PSD’s reputation and provide knowledge transfer to/from our utility, including: New: 12 new Operator
licenses have been earned so farin FY ’25; training and conferences attended include: Certified
Government Finance Officer; S.C. Assoc. of CPAs; WEFTEC '24; WaterSmart Innovations '24; WEASC Sea
Island District; E-One Low-Pressure Sewer; WEASC Operator’s Conference; SCAWWA Water Loss Control
Workshop; WateReuse SC-Water Research Foundation Recycled Water Communications Workshop; S.C.
Rural Water Conference.

4.3. Inspire every employee to make customer service an integral part of his or her job performance.

4.3 Management Tactics:

44) A key tactic of this objective is achieved via the PSD hiring process, which places an emphasis on customer
service aptitude and experience. Many current PSD team members have joined us from customer-facing
roles in the local hospitality, health care, and residential and commercial maintenance industries.

45) Employee Recognition Program in place to recognize team members via customer, coworker, and
supervisor input. Employee Recognition Program recognizes team members quarterly based on customer
and co-worker feedback. New: Team members Arthur Washington, Shaun Chisolm, Shani Wittingham,
Renee White, Dustin McVey and Quintin Smalls were recognized during the 2" Qtr. XXX team members
received Employee Recognition during the 2" gtr.

4.4, Research and evaluate new customer-focused areas of interest and value-added services utilizing
best available technologies where economically feasible.

4.4 Management Tactics:




46) New: A presentation will be given to the Commission in January on the PSD’s Advanced Metering
Infrastructure (AMI) system and our Customer Portal for bill payment and consumption tracking and alerts.

4.5. Review and/or develop policies detailing positions on various customer service issues,
such as water leaks, remediation of water issues, etc.

4.5 Management Tactics:

47) Staff drafted and the Commission adopted in September an updated Drought Management Plan and
Drought Response Regulation, using current guidance from the S.C. Climatology Office. This was the first
update of the plan and regulation since 2003.

48) The FY '25 budget process resulted in implementation of revised sewer connection and backflow
prevention inspection fees to reflect current costs incurred by the PSD.

4.6. Celebrate District and Staff accomplishments.

4.6 Management Tactics:

49) News releases, bill insert announcements, and social media posts sent on: Water Quality Laboratory once
again being recognized as a Laboratory of Excellence as part of its annual certification by the S.C. DHEC;
PSD earning its third U.S. EPA WaterSense Excellence Award for Education and Outreach; Temporary
Irrigation Cessation Request; Cold Weather and Your Water Service; Annual Chlorination & Line Flushing.

50) PSD partnered with Community Foundation of the Lowcountry to create a scholarship campaign in
recognition of Customer Service Supervisor Vermell Scott, who retired in 2025. _

51) New: A retirement celebration was held for Vermell Scott, whose last day with the District after 24 years in
our Customer Service department was Dec. 31.

5. Goal No. 5 - Financial Responsibility: Conduct all District activity in a fiscally responsible manner.

5.1. Ensure fair, adequate, sufficient, and equitable rates, fees and charges through cost-of-service rate
methodology.

5.1 Management Tactics:

52) FY '25 rate adjustments were based on cost-of-service analysis.
5.2. Plan and use debt prudently.

5.2 Management Tactics:

53) Beaufort County Council gave unanimous authorization for the PSD to issue up to $23 million in general
obligation debt related to the local match for our SCIIP projects as well as potential capital project needs.

54) The S.C. Drinking Water State Revolving Fund has approved our use of SRF funds for $2.5 million in our
engineering costs related to our SCIIP/ARPA projects.

55) The PSD had $14.4 million in projects for our Recycled Water Plant (WWTP) placed on the S.C. Clean Water
(wastewater) State Revolving Fund (SRF) FY '25 Intended Use Plan. This is the first step necessary to be
approved for a low-interest loan through the SRF. The projects include replacement of screw pumps,



construction of a new influent screen as backup, warehouse and garage replacement, and onsite sodium
hypochlorite generation system. Our projects ranked 12th out of 22 utilities/municipalities placed on the
list, which totals approximately $520 million in estimated project costs. Attached is the full FY ’25 Intended
Use Plan.

56) The PSD obtained a 20-year, $20.4-million tax exempt non-bank qualified general obligation bond (Series
2024B) at 3.65% interest from TD Bank to cover the local commitment necessary for our SCIIP projects.
The bond, which can be prepaid subject to a 2% prepayment penalty as early as May 2027, is set for
closing on Nov. 5.

5.3. Identify and implement opportunities to reduce operating costs, without sacrificing high-quality
products and services.

5.3 Management Tactics:

57) We actively monitor non-revenue water to reduce water production costs. Non-revenue water is currently
in an acceptable 10-15% range.

58) Our FY '25 budget includes a program to monitor nitrate and ammonia in our WWTP aeration basins to aid
in our adjustment of our aeration to save energy costs.

5.4. Identify and develop opportunities that enhance the District’s revenue and improve its cash flow.

5.4 Management Tactics:

59) We are carrying out our ongoing meter changeout program, which is a key tactic to ensure that the PSD is
capturing consumption and generating accurate bills.

60) We are lowering our bad debt expense via pro-active communications with delinquent payers.

61) We are reducing the number of and dollar amount of leak adjustments by proactively communicating with
customers.

62) We are participating in the S.C. Local Government Investing Pool, which is an investment mechanism
authorized by the General Assembly to provide local governments an opportunity to acquire maximum
returns on investments by pooling available funds with funds from other political subdivisions.

5.5. Review internal controls and policies regularly to ensure security of District assets and the integrity of
District reports. Conform to the state and federal mandates regarding annual audits.

5.5 Management Tactics:

63) Appropriate internal controls are in place and routinely reviewed.

5.6. Monitor and report on operating ratios, goals, and benchmarks to maintain/improve performance and
maintain a high credit rating.

5.6 Management Tactics:

64) Quarterly financial reporting provides ratios/benchmarks update.



65) PSD earned 14™"-straight GFOA award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for our FY '23 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report.

5.7. Develop and manage business and operational plans and prepare budgets that support those plans.

5.7 Management Tactics:

66) Our FY '25 budget included consumption rate increases in the upper tiers to send a price signal to promote
water efficiency among customers.

67) Asset management planning is informing annual Operating & Maintenance and Capital Improvement
Program budgets.

6. Goal No. 6 — Organizational Excellence and Leadership: Achieve organizational excellence and
leadership.

6.1. Promote, monitor, and support safety in all workplaces and activities.

6.1 Management Tactics:

68) Routine safety training is in place. Longtime PSD safety instructor Bob “Safety Bob” Stinnett leads monthly
courses and supervisors provide regular in-field discussions and “tailgate talks.”

69) CPR/AED training provided for all PSD staff free of charge from Hilton Head Fire Rescue.

70) Active shooter response training led by former law enforcement officers was held in October.

71) The Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office conducted a free assessment of PSD Oak Park Drive campus physical
security. Several security-related improvements have been implemented as a result of Sheriff’s Office
recommendations.

72) PSD Workers’ Compensation coverage provided by the S.C. State Accident Fund, which continues to
provide premium based on PSD incident history. We have had one (non-OSHA reportable) workplace injury
in FY ‘25 to date.

6.2. Attract and retain a professional, diverse, motivated, customer-oriented staff, at a level consistent
with meeting the District’s goals, while considering novel approaches to recruitment.

6.2 Management Tactics:

73) Competitive compensation and benefits packages are funded in the FY 24 budget and included in the draft
FY ‘25 budget.

74) PSD recruits in a variety of formats that include diversity-focused recruitment websites/listings.

75) Word-of-mouth and recommendations from existing team members continue to provide a key resource
for recruitment, particularly at the local level.

76) We participate in potential recruitment with a variety of partners, including our local schools and trade
associations. We utilize word-of-mouth, social media, and traditional media in our recruitment advertising.

77) We have signed up as a participating utility in the S.C. Rural Water Association’s brand new Pre-
Apprenticeship Program, wherein our costs of adding an intern who is still in high school may be
subsidized by the association and wherein the association may match interns with us.

78) We have signed up to participate in a new Workforce Collaborative effort by the S.C. AWWA/WEASC. The
program is being modeled off Baywork program in San Francisco. The member utilities will pool resources

10



(training, recruitment, referrals, etc.) to create a sustainable water/wastewater workforce for the state of
South Carolina.

79) Multiple training programs and opportunities are in place utilizing trade associations, in-house resources,
and independent study. New: Training examples this FY include: Biological Wastewater Treatment, Water
Treatment, E-One Low-Pressure Sewer Pumps, Effectively Driving Change, and Email Habits and Non-
Verbal Communication Skills, Financial Planning and Budgeting, Wastewater Collections; EPA Lead &
Copper Rule Compliance; Essential Cybersecurity Awareness; Presentation & Public Speaking Skills.

80) New: S.C. Labor Licensing and Regulation operator licenses earned this fiscal year: “D” Water Distribution,
“A” Wastewater Collections,” “C” Wastewater Collections, “C” Water Treatment, “D” Water Treatment,
“A” Biological Wastewater (2); “B” Biological Wastewater (4), “C” Biological Wastewater (2), “D” Biological
Wastewater (2).

81) The PSD should continue to add staff as necessary to work toward a generally accepted water/wastewater
sector goal of a 400-to-1 customer-to-staff ratio. Current ratio is approximately 593-to-1.

82) New: We met with the Career Development Directors of Hilton Head Island High School and May River
High School to provide an overview of careers at the PSD, internship and job shadowing opportunities, and
to discuss water/wastewater technician and operator training for the new vocational education wing at
HHI H.S. Bluffton High School also is included in the career development opportunities with us.

6.3. Define and implement organizational succession planning.

6.3 Management Tactics:

83) Organizational structure, as well as training and educational opportunities, are in place to support
departmental succession as needed.

6.4. Provide educational opportunities for Commissioners on board governance and the PSD’s operations.

6.4 Management Tactic:

84) Clerk to Commission Connie Whitehead developed a hard-copy Commissioner Orientation Manual and it
has been provided to the Commission.

85) New: Commission meeting agenda items included: Purchasing Policy Updates; Long-Term Financial
Planning; Drought Management & Response; Purchased Water Agreements; a presentation will be given
to the Commission in January on the PSD’s AMI metering system and Customer Portal.

7. Goal No. 7 — Asset Management: Acquire, maintain, protect, and secure the District’s property,
databases, plant and equipment assets (investment in the future).

7.1. Maintain and execute a system preventative maintenance program that minimizes the number,
severity, and duration of loss of service incidents.

7.1 Management Tactics:

86) Water and wastewater systems’ preventative maintenance program is in place and utilizing Geographic
Information Systems, particularly in the area of sewer lift station maintenance.

87) Appropriate staff level is a key tactic to minimize the number, severity, and duration of loss of service
incidents, particularly due to a small amount of available contractors to assist in such situations.

11



88) The adopted FY ‘25 budget supports a staff level appropriate to meet current system needs and help
prepare for continued growth in the PSD customer base.

89) New: The entire PSD team in October engaged in Asset Management training sessions with Tacoma Zach
of MentorAPM, a leading asset management/computerized maintenance management system provider.
The sessions focused on the benefits of reliability-centered maintenance for product quality, sustainability,
and safety. A big thanks to PSD Asset Management Specialist Hal Hylton for arranging this training.

7.2. Prepare an asset inventory and 5-year replacement plans for the water/wastewater systems.

7.2 Management Tactics:

90) PSD asset inventory is up to date and serves as basis of S.C. Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF) policies covering
utility assets. “Self-insurance” tactic (days cash on hand) review among staff and the Commission was part
of the FY ’25 budget process and will be an ongoing consideration.

91) Replacements/enhancements funded in FY ‘25 Capital Improvement Plan.

92) PSD Capital Improvement Plan is updated annually and prepared on a 5-year basis. The adopted FY '25
budget includes a 5-year replacement plan and supports an appropriate annual capital improvement
program.

7.3. Maintain a current comprehensive security infrastructure/disaster preparedness and recovery plan.

7.3 Management Tactics:

93) Emergency Response Plan is up to date and certified to U.S. EPA.

94) PSD has a key seat at the table for all Beaufort County and Town of Hilton Head Island multi-agency
emergency planning activities. Our critical assets are listed for priority attention by the Town, County, and
Palmetto Electric.

7.4. Exercise oversight over new construction projects to ensure construction complies with District
standards and appropriate documentation is provided. In addition, ensure that new construction is
compatible with the existing system and service can be extended to nearby properties.

7.4 Management Tactics:

95) Our System Specifications for development have been updated and are in use. The specifications provide
the PSD’s standard requirements for utility infrastructure in order to assist developers in planning and
construction.

96) Internal and external project management is in place on developer and PSD projects.

7.5. Maintain adequate and comprehensive insurance coverage of District assets.

7.5 Management Tactics:

97) PSD is insured by the State of South Carolina Insurance Reserve Fund (IRF) at adequate levels. We annually
review our insured assets and coverage and make modifications thereto.
98) Cybersecurity insurance has been added.

12



7.6. Maintain and protect confidential information through technology systems to ensure integrity of
operations and information security.

7.6 Management Tactics:

99) Cybersecurity systems are in place on all business and operational systems.
100) Cybersecurity training is being implemented for all staff members. New: A multi-part cybersecurity
training and examination program was conducted with all staff during 2nd Qtr. FY 25

7.7. Maintain physical security of property and equipment.

7.7 Management Tactics:

101) Extensive camera surveillance of PSD facilities is in place.

102) Alarm systems in place on key PSD facilities.

103) Beaufort County Sheriff’s Office performed free assessment of PSD Oak Park Drive campus physical
security and PSD implemented multiple security enhancements based on Sheriff’s Office review.

104) Security in place for field assets.

7.8. Utilize best available technologies were economically feasible.

7.8 Management Tactics:

105) Detailed asset inventory and naming system created for Recycled Water Plan Assets. New: Reverse
Osmosis Plant assets completed.

106) Detailed asset inventories and naming systems underway to plug into Computerized Maintenance
Management Systems (CMMS) when selected.

107) Advanced Metering Infrastructure in place.

108) Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system enhancements are ongoing.

109) Geographic Information System enhancements are ongoing and utilizing field- and desktop-based
updating.

110) Computerized water distribution model update completed.

8. Goal No. 8 — External Relations: Develop, expand and leverage the District’s positive relationships with
external organizations, utilities and governments.

8.1. Develop and expand cooperative and mutually beneficial relationships with the Town of Hilton Head,
county, state, and federal elected representatives, local and state public service districts, public

agencies and associations, the media and communities within the District.

8.1 Management Tactics:

111) Town staff assisted the PSD in response to S.C. DOT plans for barge-based geotechnical boring in
vicinity of PSD subaqueous drinking water pipeline in Mackay and Skull creeks.

112) Hilton Head Town Council voted in 2022 in support of working with the PSD on development of our
second Aquifer Storage & Recovery well on the Town-owned Ashmore Tract, as well as the expansion of

13



our Reverse Osmosis Drinking Water Treatment Facility, which involves the Town-owned Old Welcome
Center site and Jenkins Island Tract. Town staff and Town Council have been very supportive and helpful in
addressing our need for easements on Town-owned property to complete our SCIIP projects. Town Council
approved the easements at its Oct. 17 meeting. Town Council unanimously approved during 1 Qtr. FY 25
all necessary easements for PSD SCIIP projects.

8.2. Monitor and evaluate the impacts of federal, state and local legislation and regulations that impact
the District’s current and future operations.

8.2 Management Tactics:

113) PSD General Manager Pete Nardi has helped launch the new S.C. Chapter of WateReuse Association to
influence reuse water regulations/legislation.

114) New: We are monitoring legislation via our involvement in S.C. Water Utility Council and S.C. Water
Quality Association (SCWQA). Below are the 2025 S.C. General Assembly Pre-filed Bills we are monitoring,
including commentary from the SCWQA:

Utility Relocation Sunset Provision — Would extend the sunset provision in the water and sewer utility
relocation funding act from July 1, 2026, to July 1, 2031. This is expected to pass. It has not yet been assigned a

bill number.

Governor’s Executive Budget — Governor McMaster’s budget request includes $193.5M for additional income
tax cuts down to 6%. It also includes $13.7M to the Department of Environmental Services for “permitting
reform” and $240M for disaster relief. That program includes $150M for a grant program administered by the
South Carolina Emergency Management Division (SCEMD). The grant program “will allow local governments,
public utilities, nonprofit, and charitable aid organizations to apply for disaster recovery funds — funds that
were either denied by the federal government or did not meet federal FEMA thresholds." The full budget
request can be viewed here: https://www.governor.sc.gov/news/2025-01/governor-henry-mcmaster-
announces-fiscal-year-2025-2026-executive-budget

Signs at Outfalls — S 139 Would require NPDES permittees to post signs at outfalls (Devine — D) This is not a big
deal and routinely required in almost every other state. We suggest the SCWQA take no position on this. The
sigh must be at least eighteen inches square and include the following information:

(1) the words "Treated Wastewater" or "Cooling Water", as appropriate;

(2) the name of the permittee and the facility;

(3) the permit number;

(4) a telephone number for the permittee; and

(5) a telephone number for reporting to the department.

Development Impact Fees — H 3165 Would change development impact fee definition and applicability
(Wooten — R). Generally, SCWQA thinks the changes this bill would implement are beneficial to local

governments.
Definition of a public facility is revised to include vehicles with a cost less than $100K. Previously, it was only

vehicles with a cost greater than $100K.

14



The definition of “system improvement costs” previously excluded (1) repair and O&M of existing or new
capital improvements and (2) administrative/operating costs of the governmental entity. These costs would
now be included in system improvement costs.

The development impact fee would no longer have to be based “on actual improvement costs or reasonable
estimates of the costs, supported by sound engineering studies.” This is beneficial and appears to have the
effect of not requiring that engineers prepare these cost estimates.

An impact fee ordinance would no longer have to include a provision specifying the termination (sunset) of
the fee. This makes sense and avoids forcing governmental entities to repeatedly re-adopt impact fee
ordinances.

Excavation Projects —H 3571 Would add new sections on large projects in the Underground Facility Damage
Prevention Act & Would limit excavator liability (Hiott — R and Majority Leader). This bill will likely pass. The
bill generally cleans up certain provisions of the Underground Facility Damage Prevention Act, seeks to have
the Act better accommodate Large Projects, and seeks to put teeth into violations of the Act by setting up a
process by which the SC Attorney General can seek fines ranging from $5K to $25K per violation of the act.

Funding Assistance — H 3373 Directs the SC Rural Infrastructure Authority to provide staff support and
assistance to the SC Water Quality Revolving Fund Authority (Hixon — R, W. Newton — R, Mitchell =R, and Yow

—R). No position.

Septic Repair — H 3656 Would prohibit DES from denying well and septic tank repair or replacement regardless
of availability of municipal water/sewer service (Ligon — R). SCWQA opposes this bill because it will undermine
public utilities’ ability to extend service to areas with failing wells/septic systems and will make it harder to
serve growth. This bill is especially unwise given the challenges well-owners can face with emerging
contaminants in their well water such as PFAS chemicals.

HOAs and Utility Billing — H 3425 Would prohibit Homeowners Associations from paying utility bills on behalf
of homeowners (McDaniel — D) This bill would impose notice requirements on homeowner associations
before they spend unbudgeted funds AND includes the following provision regarding utility service: “a
homeowners association may not control the utilities of the homeowners and must transfer the control over
the utility service to the homeowner.” SCWQA reads this to preclude HOAs from paying utility bills for homes
within the association. HOAs may have used control over public utility service as a way to ensure
homeowners paid their HOA fees. SCWQA plans to stay out of this fight.

PFAS — H 3116 Would require the Department of Environmental Services to promulgate regulations
prohibiting the discharge of PFAS at ANY contaminant level in any waterway or drinking water supply of the
State (Bustos — R). The bill is unrealistic and will not go anywhere. It was likely introduced by request of a
constituent (done as a courtesy but the legislator will not likely push for passage).

15



| - GM Monthly Report -



HiltonHead

Cwrkstgisd
<<ggmpe

To: Hilton Head PSD Commission
From: Pete Nardi, General Manager
Re: PSD Updates

January 14, 2025
Dear Commissioners, please see below the following updates:

e We are experiencing demand of approx. 6 million gallons a day (mgd), which is normal for this time of
year and prevailing weather conditions, and includes Aquifer Storage & Recovery recharge.

e We have been awarded a $1.5-million grant from the S.C. Rural Infrastructure Authority for the
replacement of the screw pumps in the Recycled Water Plant. The project is preliminarily estimated to
cost approximately $4.5 million. We will be preparing a bid package in the coming months.

e S.C. Infrastructure Investment Program (SCIIP) Projects Update:

o Project Closeout Update
»  The SCIIP program has informed us that we will be permitted to closeout the projects in

spring 2027. We anticipate having all grant proceeds expended by summer 2026.
o RO Plant Expansion
= Reverse Osmosis (RO) Water Treatment Plant (WTP) Expansion: Continued coordination
on shop drawing review and responses to request for information from the contractor.
Contractor procuring long lead items and will mobilize on 12/02/2025.
o RO Well #4, ASR Well #2, and Transmission Mains
= Preconstruction meeting was held on 11/06/2024 with a Notice to Proceed date of
12/02/2024. A preliminary schedule has been reviewed with a Mobilization date of
1/17/2025. The RO-4 Well & Transmission Main will be constructed first followed by the
ASR-2 Well & Transmission Main. :
= We are coordinating with the Town on a date for a groundbreaking ceremony at RO
Well #4, potentially sometime in February.

o Leg O’Mutton Water Booster Station
= Awaiting Building Permit from Town of HHI. Engineer is responding to comments from
Town on Building Permit Application. Contractor is ready to mobilize.

e Pipeline Relocation: We have sent the following requests to the S.C. DOT’s project manager regarding
the geotechnical borings in the vicinity of the subaqueous portions of our drinking water pipeline. To
date, there has been no response to the request:

o 1. Obtain all SCDOT borings previously made and any other historical boring data available and
create a profile of the strata in which the water main is located. Since the formations are
generally consistent, we will know what material should be just above the main whether it be a
hard layer (shell, limestone, etc.), cemented sand or marl. Have buy-in by the geotechnical
engineer/driller on what is anticipated to be encountered during drilling.



o

(@)

2. Request that a Cone Penetration Test (CPT) probe be used for those boring in close proximity
to the water main. The probe is pushed downhole and has no cutting drill bit. If steel is
encountered, pushing it through the casing would be highly unlikely if not impossible.

3. In the event a CPT is not used, monitor the boring operation closely. If refusal occurs,
immediately stop drilling. The drill head would then be extracted and inspected for the material
in the drill bit. If no material is retrieved, then observation of the bit should provide evidence, if
steel was encountered. If undetermined as to what caused refusal, a split spoon sampler could
then be inserted in the bore hole until the hard material is again encountered. If refused again,
remove the split spoon and inspect for steel impact. A qualified driller would not drill through a
steel pipe using a drill bit typically used for the soils in this area (ie. not a rock bit).

4. If it is determined the obstruction is the steel casing or undetermined hard material, then
offset the boring to some agreed upon distance and complete the boring.

Frank Turano and Bill Davis attended a Town Council workshop this month in which funding for
the bridge project was discussed.

e | attended the HHI-Bluffton Chamber’s Public Policy Committee this month and had the Chamber
include language regarding advocating for water reuse systems, sewer connectivity, and tap water
infrastructure in its 2025 Legislative Priorities.

e | have been invited to deliver the welcome remarks to the American Water Works Association’s
National Board when it meets on Hilton Head later this month.

e Hilton Head and Broad Creek PSDs met with HHI Fire Rescue this month for our annual meeting in
which we discuss areas of mutual operation and interest. Hydrant maintenance and structure-fire
notification to the PSD were among the topics discussed.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.

All my best,

27

Pete Nardi

General Manager






Bonnie Ammons

Harry M. Lightsey III
V Executive Director

Chairman

South Carolina
Rural Infrastructure Authority

December 9, 2024

The Honorable Frank Turano
Chairman

Hilton Head Public Service District
Post Office Box 21264

Hilton Head, South Carolina 29925

Dear Chairman Turano:

On behalf of the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority, I am pleased to inform you that a
Basic Infrastructure grant has been approved in the amount of $1,500,000 for the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Influent Screw Lift Pumps Replacement project. This project supports
infrastructure improvements that will enhance the quality of life in your community.

You will receive a grant agreement which identifies the conditions of this assistance within the
next few days. We look forward to working with you to build infrastructure capacity for the future.

Since

cc: Beaufort County Delegation

1201 Main Street, Suite 1600, Columbia, SC 29201 | P: 803-737-0390 | F: 803-737-0894



e S - S S

Tneqac Was rus e —-

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
BEAUFORT-JASPER WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
FISCAL YEAR 2026-2028 RATE INCREASES

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday. the
7th day of January 2(25. The hearing will be held at the office of Beaufort-Jasper Water and
Sewer Authority, which is located at 6 Snake Road, Okatie, SC. The purpose of the public
hearing will be to allow members of the public to express their views regarding the proposed
rate increases for Beaufort-Jasper Water and Sewer Authority for Fiscal Years 2026-2028.

All persons who attend the public hearing will be given an opportunity to speak. Beaufort-
Jasper Water and Sewer Authority does not levy ad valorem property taxes. The Authority
relies on user charges 0 meet its operational needs.
As required by Section 6-1-330, Code of Laws South Carolina, 1976, as amended, the public
hearing on the proposed rates is being held prior to the final adoption. -
The publicis advised of the following for the proposed rates and their effective dates for fiscal
years 2026-2028:
Approved Proposed Proposed Proposed
VIATER Current Eflective Effective Eflective
fales Jig1,20%5  Juy1,2026  Juyl, 2021
commercial Irrigation | Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $17.00 $17.85 $19.10 $20.06
Usage per Thousand gallons $6.24 6.55 $7.01 $7.36
commercial Water | Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $17.00 $17.85 $19.10 $20.06
Usage per Thousand gallons $4.70 $4.94 $5.29 $5.55
e - e 2] | A e /
Residential Irrigation | Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $12.00 $12.60 $13.48 $14.15
Usage per Thousand gallons $6.24 $6.55 $7.01 $7.36
B L RS et BRE e et
Residential Water Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $12.00 $12.60 $13.48 $14.15
Usage per Thousand gallons $4.70 $4.94 $5.29 $6.55
_’_————__,__._-—_/__’___,______,_______—_
Raw Water Fixed 0&M
Commercial Contract | Charge per Month $6,200.00 $6,510.00 $6,965.70 $7,313.99
Usage per Thousand gallons $0.15 $0.16 $0.17 $0.18
_,__,__-—_,___-—_____,_—-—_________—____‘________
Reverse Osmosis Fixed 0&M :
commercial Contract | Charge per Month $5,700.00 $5,985.00 $6,403.95 $6,724.15
Usage per Thousand gallons $4.69 $4.92 $5.26 $6.52
[ St /—___,__________,._.__4_._
Return Water Fixed 0&M
commercial Contract | Charge per Month $3,392.00 $3,561.60 $3,810.91 $4,001.46
Usage | perThousand gallons $0.07 $0.07 $0.07 $0.07
_”_—/—__/_____/__,___/
Wholesale Military per Thousand gallons $4.01 $4.21 $4.50 $4.73
Area A2 per Thousand gallons $3.76 $3.95 $4.23 $4.44
Area A3 per Thousand gallons $3.76 $3.95 $4.28 $4.44
Area B1 per Thousand gallons $3.76 $3.95 $4.23 $4.44
Area B2 per Thousand gallons $3.75 $3.94 $4.22 $4.43
Area B3 per Thousand gallons $2.71 $2.85 $3.05 $3.20
SEWER
Commercial Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $21.60 $22.68 $24.27 $25.48
Usage per Thousand gallons $10.13 $10.64 $11.38 $11.95
__’——/__/_I—___—//
Bulk Commercial Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $21.60 $22.68 $24.27 $25.48
Usage per Thousand gallons $750 $7.88 $8.43 $8.85
_/—____———___,_——__,_///
Residential Minimum Basic Facilities Charge $17.50 $18.38 $19.67 $20.65
Usage per Thousand gallons $751 $7.89 $8.44 $8.86
Maximum per month | Residential Maximum $92.60 $97.28 $104.07 $109.25
: e A L e s
Reclaimed Water Fixed 0&M
Charge:
NOB Golf Course
Irrigation per Month $460.00 $483.00 $616.81 $542.65
S0B Golf Course
Irrigation per Month $521.00 $547.05 $585.34 $614.61
SOB Residential/
Commercial
Irrigation per Month $2,000.00 $2,100.00 $2,247.00 $2,359.35
Usage per Thousand gallons $0.25 $0.26 $0.28 $0.29




“B°Ella C. White

Memorial Scholarship Fund
P. O. Box 21284 = Hilton Head Island, S.C. 29925 = www.ecwscholarship.org

December 26, 2024

Pete Nardi, General Manager

Hilton Head Island Public Service District
P.O. Box 21264

Hilton Head Island, S.C. 29926

Dear Mr. Nardi,

We are overjoyed to share the incredible success of the Ella C. White Memorial Scholarship
Fundraiser held earlier this year on May 17, 2024. Your unwavering support made the 2024
Tassel Scholarship Awards Gala truly remarkable!

We extend our gratitude to you for supporting the 2024 Tassel Scholarship Awards Dinner with
the purchase of a corporate table and an advertisement. It is with the commitment of supporters
like you that we continue to inspire and empower the next generation of scholars. Your
partnership ensures that our annual event not only raises critical funds but also fosters
community awareness and engagement.

The evening was a celebration of achievement and hope, featuring a moving keynote address, a
delicious dinner, exciting door prizes, captivating local entertainment, and the memorable
presentation of scholarships. We are confident these elements left a lasting impression on our
attendees, encouraging continued investment in the academic dreams of local students.

Since its establishment in 1972, the Ella C. White Memorial Scholarship Fund has proudly
supported students from Hilton Head Island and Bluffton public high schools. As a recognized
501(c)(3) organization, we are committed to promoting higher education through scholarships.
This year, we awarded an impressive $17,000 in scholarships to 11 outstanding students,
including six high school graduates and five continuing college scholars. Over the years, the fund
has provided 913 scholarships totaling $828,200—an achievement made possible by your
steadfast support.

Once again, thank you for your generosity and commitment to our shared mission of elevating
students toward brighter futures. As we look ahead, we invite you to mark your calendar for our
next event, the 2025 Tassel Scholarship Awards & Fundraising Gala, scheduled for Friday,
May 16, 2025, on Hilton Head Island. Your ongoing partnership will help us continue to
transform lives.

Sincerely,

CongtyPbodt—

Carolyn Grant
Co-Chairman, The Tassel Scholarship Awards & Fundraising Dinner



MOODY’S
RATINGS

OUTLOOK
11 December 2024

TR 0 o R YA
(| Send Your Feedback |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Summary 1
Liquidity will remain strong, with
revenue growth insulating against
escalating costs 2

Debt burdens will stay flat in 2025,
reversing a long trend of declines, and
coverage will remain stable 3

Asset condition will remain flat
through 2025, but may begin to
improve thereafter as utilities

increase capital spending 4

Strong governance and rate-setting
authority provide foundational
strengths to mitigate longer-term
risks, though affordability questions
remain

Appendix

Contacts

Jeff Norred +1.214.979.6844
Analyst

jeff.norred@moodys.com

Isabelle Hazel +1.212.553.2991
Analyst

isabelle.hazel@moodys.com

Maddie Atkins +1.415.2741725
Analyst

maddie.atkins@moodys.com

Eva Bogaty +1.415.274.1765
MD-Public Finance

eva.bogaty@moodys.com

Timothy Blake, CFA +1.212.553.4524
MD-Public Finance

timothy.blake@moodys.com

CLIENT SERVICES
Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

U.S. Public Finance

Water & Sewer Utilities — US
2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will
be absorbed by rate increases

Summary
The outlook for US municipal water and sewer utilities is stable over the next 12 months

as rate increases will provide sufficient revenue growth to support increased capital and
operating costs from new federal regulations. Liquidity will decline modestly from recent
peaks as utilities begin substantial capital projects necessary to comply with regulations
limiting forever chemicals and accelerating the timeline for replacing lead service lines. The
increased costs associated with these investments will largely be passed on to customers
through rate hikes. The strong balance sheets utilities built up over the last few years will also
support capital investment and stable credit conditions.

»

»

»

»

Liquidity will remain strong, with revenue growth insulating against escalating
costs. Median liquidity (days cash on hand) will decline modestly, by about 2%, as
utilities use cash reserves for infrastructure investment and to achieve compliance with
new regulations. Liquidity declines will be softened by rate increases that will produce
sufficient revenue growth to offset some of the cash outlays.

Debt burdens will stay flat in 2025, reversing a long trend of declines, and
coverage will remain stable. Many utilities are likely to increase debt issuance in 2025
to finance capital improvements aimed at addressing regulations and aging infrastructure.
State and federal loan programs and lower interest rates will also drive increased leverage.

Asset condition will remain flat, but may begin to improve after 2025 as utilities
increase capital spending. Improvement in asset condition will necessarily lag initial
capital spending due to the scale and time frame for completion of typical utility
infrastructure projects.

Strong governance and rate-setting authority provide foundational strengths to
mitigate longer-term risks, though rate affordability concerns remain. Prudent
management and close ties to municipal governments will continue to support the
utility sector as physical climate risks persist. Autonomous rate-setting will remain a
key strength of the sector, though affordability concerns present practical limits to rate

increases.

What could change the outlook. We could revise our outlook to positive if liquidity
improves by over 8% or if additional federal programs are established that significantly
reduce the cost of complying with new regulatory requirements. The outlook could
change to negative if changes in operating conditions suggest liquidity will decline by over
10%.



Moody's Ratings U.S. Public Finance

Outlook definition

The stable outlook reflects our view of credit fundamentals in the US municipal water and sewer utility sector over the next 12 months. Sector
outlooks are distinct from rating outlooks, which, in addition to sector dynamics, also reflect issuers' specific characteristics and actions. A
sector outlook does not represent a sum of upgrades, downgrades or ratings under review, or an average of rating outlooks.

Liquidity will remain strong, with revenue growth insulating against escalating costs

The stable outlook for the sector reflects our expectation that liquidity will remain robust, despite slight declines driven by capital
investment to comply with new regulatory requirements and to address aging infrastructure. Median liquidity, as measured by days
cash on hand (DCOH), is likely to decline by 2% in 2025 (see Exhibit 1). The decline in liquidity would be much greater if not for
revenue growth that will replenish some of the cash outlays, softening the overall impact on liquidity.

i)i(::itc;ity will decline modestly in 2025 as utilities begin upfront investment to comply with new EPA rules

Median days cash on hand

600

500

400
- 300
200

100

0 . e S o R | =arf= - - jant] 5
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024(F) 2025(F)

Source: Moody's Ratings

The US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) made two regulatory rule changes in 2024 that affect water utilities and will soften
liquidity in the outlook period. In April, the EPA finalized regulations that limit the concentration of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances
(PFAS), also known as forever chemicals, in drinking water. In October, the EPA also strengthened the existing Lead and Copper Rule to
require utilities to replace all lead service lines (LSLs) within 10 years compared with the prior timeline of 30 years.

These two regulatory changes come with considerable capital costs for some utilities. The total cost to comply with the PFAS rule

s likely to be between $30 billion and $60 billion, and only impacts about 15% of the sector, while LSL replacement is projected to
cost between $20 billion and $30 billion. While these additional capital costs do not impact the whole sector uniformly, they come
in addition to the sectorwide trend of aging infrastructure. The EPA's most recent survey of needs estimates that the water and sewer
sector will require about $1.2 trillion in infrastructure investment over the next 20 years ($625 billion for water and $630 billion for
sewer).

Favorably, the new EPA rules are accompanied by considerable external funding sources, including federal grants, low/no interest loans
and proceeds from PFAS-related settlements. The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act of 2021 provides about $12 billion in grant
funding to address PFAS contamination ($5 billion) and LSL replacement, coupled with a similar amount available for low-interest loans
through the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) program. Other state revolving funds (separate from the DWSRF), Water

,] This publication does not announce 3 credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the issuer/deal page on https://ratings moodys.com for the
most updated credit rating action information and rating history.

2 11 December 2024 Water & Sewer Utilities — US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



Moody's Ratings U.S. Public Finance

Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) loans, and over $12 billion in currently agreed upon settlement proceeds from PFAS
manufacturers provide additional funding sources to address infrastructure improvements needed to comply with EPA rules. However,
the lengthy application process for these external funding sources makes it likely many utilities will use cash reserves to get capital
projects started in 2025.

Utilities have bolstered liquidity levels over the last five years, which will provide ample ability to absorb these upfront costs.
Additionally, rate increases will remain utilities’ most important tool for cost recovery and will drive sufficient revenue growth in 2025
to largely offset the use of cash. We expect median operating revenue to grow by 6% in 2025, above the average growth rate of about
4% for the prior five years (see Exhibit 2).

Exhibit 2
Operating revenue will grow by 6% in 2025, primarily driven by rate increases
Median total operating revenue

[ Total operating revenues ($000) == Annual change (%)

s
o ———
230,000 R | 6%
2 T [
z | | o B
g 20,000 | 4% 8
e ' e
o } 0
£ 10,000 . 2% @
g 1
g i
© 0 ‘ 0%
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024(F) 2025(F)

Source: Moody's Ratings

According to the American Water Works Association's (AWWA) annual survey of water utility executives, about 78% of utility
executives identify rate increases as a key financing mechanism to fund necessary capital improvements; rate increases were the most-
cited funding mechanism. We expect most utilities to implement increases of between 3% and 8% in 2025 to help cover inflation

of general operating costs. However, utilities exposed to PFAS contamination or high concentration of lead service lines will likely
implement much larger rate increases to recover these costs.

It is uncertain how the new EPA regulations will be viewed by the incoming Trump administration, but recent actions by Trump-
aligned members of the Senate and House of Representatives suggest efforts will be made to ease the recent EPA regulations. If the
administration does weaken or withdraw the new EPA rules, we expect most utilities will carry on with their current capital plans aimed

at attaining compliance with the existing EPA rules.

While our outlook for the sector is stable, we could revise it to positive if liquidity improves by over 8% or if additional federal
programs are established that significantly reduce the cost of complying with new regulatory requirements. The outlook could change
to negative if changes in operating conditions suggest liquidity will decline by over 10%.

Debt burdens will stay flat in 2025, reversing a long trend of declines, and coverage will remain stable
We expect debt burdens to remain level in 2025, if not increase slightly, as utilities begin increasing capital investment to address
additional regulatory requirements and aging infrastructure. This is counter to a decadelong trend of moderating debt burdens in the
sector (see Exhibit 3). Over half of the federal and state funding available to address water and wastewater infrastructure comes in the
form of loan programs, which will increase utilities' balance sheet leverage if used. Lower interest rates relative to prior years will further

support increased borrowing by utilities in 2025.

11 December 2024 Water & Sewer Utilities — US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



Moody's Ratings U.S. Public Finance

.

. ZX ’;:Ic:taierating trend in debt burdens will shift as issuance rises to finance capital projectg
Median total debt to operating revenues
3.0x
2.5x
2.0x
1.5x
1.0x

0.5x

0.0x

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024(F) 2025(F)

Source: Moody's Ratings

Despite the increased debt issuance, annual debt service coverage will remain strong for the year, at around 2.5x (see Exhibit 4). Our
expectation of unchanging coverage for 2025 reflects marginal changes in annual debt service requirements from prior years, coupled
with steady net system revenue as rate increases will offset rising operating expenditures.

Exhibit 4
Debt service coverage will stay strong, supported by revenue growth that will outpace expenditures
Median total annual debt service coverage

— Total annual debt service coverage
2.45x

2.40x

2.35x

2.30x

2.25x -

2.20x
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024(F) 2025(F)

Source: Moody's Ratings

Asset condition will remain flat through 2025, but may begin to improve thereafter as utilities increase
capital spending

Despite significant capital investment, asset condition will remain relatively flat through 2025, staying at currently adequate levels (see
Exhibit 5). Because water and sewer utility capital projects are typically large and have lengthy timelines for completion, the projects
started in the next year are unlikely to be captured in 2025 financial statements. However, the increased capital investment in 2025
will produce improved asset conditions in future years, a reversal of a decadeslong trend of aging assets.

4 11 December 2024 Water & Sewer Utilities - US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



5

Moody's Ratings U.S. Public Finance

Exhibit 5
Asset condition will remain flat through 2025
Median years remaining useful life of assets

30 ——1‘ — — | —
| |
{
, ! [ | |
20 ’ I | | |
! | | | |
i Il =
| ]
10 | | i | |
: ' | |
' ] | { |
i | | ‘ | !
0 | | ‘ ’ ' |
o o — - ~— — -— ~— v -— ~— ~— N o (aV] (o] — =
o o o o o o o o o) o o o o o o o < 7o
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N ol ol
K& &

Source: Moody's Ratings

Improving asset conditions after 2025 will be a step forward from the stabilization that has occurred since 2020. An increase in

the volume of capital projects initiated since the large influx of federal funding during the pandemic, as well as the passage of the
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act in late 2021, stalled the trend of declining asset condition seen in almost every year since at
least 2007. Federal and state funding for utility infrastructure will be a key mitigant of deteriorating asset condition during the outlook

period and over the longer term.

Strong governance and rate-setting authority provide foundational strengths to mitigate longer-term
risks, though affordability questions remain

The municipal water and sewer sector benefits greatly from strong governance and a long record of successfully managing through
challenges. Most public utilities have close ties with municipal governments, often wholly owned and operated as a department

of the municipality. The stable outlook for US Cities and Counties in 2025 supports the stable outlook for water and sewer utilities
for a variety of reasons. Public utilities benefit from the additional resources and financing sources that are available to a municipal
government, including taxing authority that may supplement utility operations, the ability to issue tax-backed debt to finance utility
infrastructure, and sharing of general admin services, which reduces operating costs.

Strong governance will remain a vital mitigant of the multitude of long-term risks facing the sector, including environmental risks,
cyber threats and concerns about utility rate affordability. Utilities are increasingly exposed to environmental risks in the form of
drought, heat stress, flooding and extreme weather events/natural disasters, with the risk severity varying by region. Utilities in the
Eastern and Southern US are particularly exposed to severe flooding, which could cause significant damage to system infrastructure
and service disruptions. Utilities in drought-prone regions, including the West and Southwest, will continue to struggle with water
scarcity and face operating headwinds over the longer term as water use restrictions will curtail sales volume, necessitating rate
increases to maintain level revenues. Some utilities experiencing water supply challenges have developed alternative, drought-
resistant sources like desalination and recycled wastewater treatment, which are typically more expensive than traditional surface and
ground water sources. While we do not expect environmental risks to manifest themselves across the sector over the next 12 months,
individual utilities may be acutely affected by severe events.

11 December 2024

Water & Sewer Utilities — US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



Moody's Ratings U.S. Public Finance

Rate affordability will remain a challenge for utilities in the next 12 months and over the longer term. With the sector facing rising
operating and capital costs, new regulatory requirements, aging infrastructure and water conservation goals, among other challenges,
rate increases will remain the most used funding mechanism to address these concerns. Although water and sewer utilities typically
have autonomous rate-setting authority, there are practical limits on the amount of costs that can be absorbed by rate payers. Utility
rates have historically grown at a greater rate than general inflation (see Exhibit 6), and we expect the gap to widen further over the
next 12 months as overall inflation abates and utilities raise rates.

Exhibit 6
Residential utility bills will continue to run ahead of general inflation
Annual percent change in consumer price index (CPI)

= Water, sewer and trash = Headline CPI
8%
6%
4%

2%

0% ———7

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics

Utilities with growing customer bases and supplemental revenue from development-related connection fees and capital contributions
from property developers will be better poised to absorb cost increases and can lessen the cost burden on existing ratepayers.
Conversely, utilities located in areas experiencing population loss will find it harder to take on increased costs and ratepayers will
shoulder most of the costs.

Appendix

Exhibit 7
Number of rated US water and sewer utilities by type
As of December 2, 2024

All rated issuers
Sewer
155

Water
213

Water and Sewer
290

Combined Utility
29

Combined utilities are issuers with water/sewer systems plus other non-water related enterprises like electric transmission or solid waste.
Source: Moody's Ratings

6 11 December 2024 Water & Sewer Utilities - US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



Moody's Ratings U.S. Public Finance

Exhibit 8
Distribution of ratings and outlooks in the water and sewer utilities sector
As of December 2, 2024

Rating distribution by number of issuers

INVESTMENT-GRADE _ SPECULATIVE-GRADE

100% 0%

e T TR T S e e e T T R T e g e e e ey o S

685 issuers 2 issuers
189 192

Aaa Aal Aa2 Aa3 Al A2 A3 BaalBaa2Baa3 Bal Ba2 Ba3 B1 B2 B3 CaalCaa2Caa3 Ca C

Outlook distribution Positive ~  Stable M RUR Negative [7] No Outlook

Total number of issuers
687

7 162
! l

Source: Moody's Ratings

7 11 December 2024 Water & Sewer Utilities — US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



8

Moody's Ratings

11 December 2024

U.S. Public Finance

© 2024 Moody's Corporation, Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Moody's Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, "MOODY'S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT OPINIONS QF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION PUBLISHED OR OTHERWISE MADE AVAILABLE

BY MOODY'S (COLLECTIVELY, "MATERIALS") MAY INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT
MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AMD ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT.

SEE APPLICABLE MOODY'S RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS
ADDRESSED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET
VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS ("ASSESSMENTS"), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S MATERIALS
ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY'S MATERIALS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK
AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND MATERIALS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND MATERIALS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY'S CREDIT
RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND MATERIALS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR.
MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER OPINIONS AMD PUBLISHES OR OTHERWISE MAKES AVAILABLE ITS MATERIALS WITH THE
EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER
CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND MATERIALS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND
INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR MATERIALS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF
IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED
OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT

USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR

WRITTEN CONSENT. FOR CLARITY, NO INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MAY BE USED TO DEVELOF, IMPROVE, TRAIN OR RETRAIN ANY SOFTWARE PROGRAM OR
DATABASE, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, FOR ANY ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE, MACHINE LEARNING OR NATURAL LANGUAGE PROCESSING SOFTWARE, ALGORITHM,
METHODOLOGY AND/OR MODEL.

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND MATERIALS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED
FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED [N ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well

as other factors, howaver, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS" without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S cansiders to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the credit rating process or in preparing its Materials.

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the passibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present ar prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY'S. 3

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and iis directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatary
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avaidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any cantingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.

NGO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT
RATING, ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation (*MCQ"), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
carporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Maody's Investors Service, Inc_have, prior to assignment of any credit rating,
agread to pay to Moody's Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it. MCO and Moady's Investors Service also maintain policies and procedures to
address the indepandence of Moody's Investors Service credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO
and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings from Moady's Investors Service, Inc. and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of
more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance — Charter Documents - Director and Shareholder Affiliation
Palicy."

Moody's SF Japan K.K., Moody's Local AR Agente de Calificacion de Riesgo S.A., Moody's Local BR Agéncia de Classificaao de Risco LTDA, Moody's Local MX S.A. de CV, 1.C V.,
Moady's Local PE Clasificadora de Riesga S.A., and Maody's Lacal PA Calificadora de Riesgo S.A. (collectively, the “Moady's Non-NRSRO CRAs") are all indirectly wholly-owned credit
1ating agency subsidiaries of MCO. None of the Moody's Non-NRSRO CRAs is a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization.

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this dacument is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody's Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended

to be provided only to "wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Carporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a "wholesale client" and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients" within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY'S credit rating is an opinion as to
the creditworthiness of a debt abligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors.

Additional terms for India only: Moody's credit ratings, Assessments, other opinions and Materials are not intended to be and shall not be relied upon or used by any users located in
India in relation to securities listed or proposed to be listed on Indian stock exchanges.

Additional terms with respect to Second Party Opinions (as definad in Moody's Investors Service Rating Symbols and Definitions): Please note that a Second Party Opinion (“SPO")
is not a "credit rating". The issuance of SPOs is not a regulated activity in many jurisdictions, including Singapore. JAPAN: In Japan, development and provision of SPOs fall under the
category of "Ancillary Businesses", not “Credit Rating Business”, and are not subject to the regulations applicable to “Credit Rating Business" under the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act of Japan and its relevant regulation. PRC: Any SPO: (1) does not constitute a PRC Green Bond Assessment as defined under any relevant PRC laws or regulations; (2)
cannot be included in any registration statement, offering circular, prospectus or any other documents submitted to the PRC regulatory authorities or otherwise used to satisfy any
PRC regulatory disclosure requirement; and (3) cannot be used within the PRC far any regulatory purpose or for any other purpose which is not permitted under relevant PRC laws or
regulations. For the purposes of this disclaimer, "PRC" refers ta the mainland of the Peaple's Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

REPORT NUMBER 1425398

Water & Sewer Utilities — US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases



9

Moody's Ratings

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas
Asia Pacific
Japan

EMEA

11 December 2024

1-212-553-1653
852-3551-3077
81-3-5408-4100
44-20-7772-5454

U.S. Public Finance

Water & Sewer Utilities - US: 2025 Outlook - Stable as higher costs will be absorbed by rate increases






Charts, Graphs & WQR



09 ‘NON 100 jdeg ‘Bny Anp aunp Repy Judy yolep ‘qe4 ‘uep
BAY 43 2z _ _ _ _ _ : ;
BAY 43 £T e 13)BM3)SEAN
B 3 o | ——— e —
By A 2z \ll\l
Bav Ala €2 \
BAY AIQ T e }

SMo|4 abeiany Jajemalsep) pue Jajepn

o O 0 N~ O v T o «

cl

asn




Ad #3 2¢

09Q "ANON 10 "jdeg ‘Bny Anp aunp Repy judy youe\ ‘o4 ‘uepr
Ad #3 €2 ! L L ! L . ! L .
Ad #3 v
19}eMa)SE N
Ad Aia gz
id AIQ £ e [Vl‘.\\)J \\\! /‘W‘@-
d A3 7 emm— S /\
y >
" il
= 191
4

MO|4 Yead 13]eM3)SEeAA pUe JI8)epp

o OO 0~ © O < o «

asw




(gaINIm)

(NO dSV/STTAM — JHNINNS) 09 — 1

(ST1TAM
ON—JHINIM) 121 - 11

(93ue1) ssouprey

douerdwo)) uy

souerdwo)) uy

souerjdwo) uy

souerdwo)) uy

("&10b) (sdgq) swnpoid-Ag uonoayuisiq

@S drraHuoNiH

VIN | VN [ VIN | VIN | VN | VN | VN|VN]|VN]|]VN]|VN/| VN (3ne) yq
69°1 LS'T 9¢'1 eL’] L9°1 LL'T 90°C 10T | 681 981 96°1 6’1 (8ae) suniory)
SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd | SSVd [eo13ojoLet0eg

9@ | AON | 00O | 1des | 8ny | Ang osunf | Aey | udy | yorew | -qag ‘uef
YIUOA] Aq SINSY 1891 Jo 2dL L,
Sunsa, AIren) Isjep| SpIM-W9ISAS
%0001 EVY6ET |0V'I91 |¥8'161 [SL'EET [98°0ET |LELYT |9L19T [6€°6ST [€6°01T |LO'06T |TLHST |SEHTI [66°LT1 [elol
%001 LL'SYT 000 000 6081 |PSIS |I8CSS [0€FS [I¥9¥ (2961 (000 [00°0 000 A19A000Y YSV
%0v1 06'0vE [98°0C [99°'1€ |YTTH |9S°9€ |[CI'IE |S8LE |8V VE |S9vT |[ILVT [90°ST |[6S1T |21°0T S[IPM VAN
%0°9¢ SCLEET [9S°TTL |09°TIT [L9°SIT |8L°86 |LI'LOT |6TTIT (LL'SIT |ETHIT [9TCIT |VELIT |10°S6 |L8°LOT el d 09
%0°0C ITOLY [86°LT |8S'LY |P8'SL |EV'LL [VSLS |18SS [¥81S [¥9°ST |8V°0E€ |TETT |SL'L 000 paseyoing

aiA dlLx 9@ | AON | WO | des | Sny | Amp | oung | Aepy | mdy | yorew | -qag ‘uef

Ajddng jo o4 :
YIUOAl Iod OIN 90In0g
Ajddng o1 M
poday Anrend) 197ep A[IUOA
¥Z-9°d
<
SRR




9T 8T A 60°C (98reyoar) YSV
A 060 VAN A1919W)) uorun)
29¢ 0ST A 10'C V4[] ¥ooiqes§
LL1 LS A V1 V4[] °SI0H PIIM
31T Tl A 00'C VAN wonnn O So1
£El 09 A eVl VAN uonels i1y
A $9'C 1218\ OY PaYSIUL]
00T - 96 0LY - SST A B/u (93uer) sToM VAN 107 MY OF
A €61 (A1ddns) vSMrg
(mdd) ssoupaeyg (mdd) [pas] (N/X) ¢esuey [enpIsoy
deaoAy IPLIO[Y)) 9SBIAY ArqEceaay SULIOID A1ddng
° ) UIYIIAA 93eIaAY

YIUOJA SIY T 10] sasury Ajijen() 19jeAp d1j1dads-A[ddng




SINY 93p1Ied PASueY) - $707/LT/C1
SIS 93puIed paSuey) - $707/20/C1
JIUOJA[ SIY T, 10J S9J0N Anfen) 191\ 19710

SS1 [e10L,

K 43 SUOT0adSU] 29 SONSST JoMOS

K QL SNOJUB[[IISTIA

K Z I0[0)/31SB] /I0PO)

£ I 93eInQ 1918

£ €1 ed]/Ae21q Sd

K v Jes[/3ea1q Iowolsn))

K L QINSSAIJ MO
SJUSUIWIO)) {POAJOSY saumbuy jo requnN Armbug jo od£.

saLnbuy awoisn)




